Digital Cable TV User Guide



TABLE OF CONTENTS

Introduction
The Remote
DVR Playback Controls4
What's on TV?5
Using the OK Button (Now Playing)5
Using the INFO Button5
Using the Browse Button6
Using the Channel Guide6
Picture in Picture
Video on Demand8
Search
Perform a Title Search Within the Guide11
Perform a Partial Text Search Using the
Search Button on Remote Control11
Record Programs12
Record What You Are Currently Watching 12
Create a One-Time Recording from the Guide . 13
Record a 'Live' Event14
Record a Series from the Guide
Recording Conflicts 16
Watch a Recorded Program16
Binge Mode Playback
Attempt to Watch a Locked Channel
Attempt to Watch a Program Outside
the Parental Rating Settings
Delete a Recording 19
Working with Multiple Streams
Using the LIST Button
Current Recordings
Future Recordings21
Series Recording Rules

TV Menu 23
Recordings Menu24
Phone Menu
Messages
Recent Calls
Apps Menu
Games
Weather
What's Hot Application
Settings Menu
Display Settings 29
Guide Settings
Parental Controls
Change PIN
Edit Locked
Set Ratings
Time Restrictions
Cancel Override
Options
Phone Settings
Recording Settings
Controlling Your DVRs Away From Home 36
ManageMyTVs App36
DVR Web Portal
Trouble Shooting

Instructions subject to change without notice.

Introduction

Get ready to free your TV. You're going to love the new control you have over how and when you watch television. You're now free from the usual constraints of ordinary television.

This extraordinary television service offers a powerful new DVR, giving you freedom to record your favorite programs and watch them on your schedule. Using the buttons on the remote control, you can fast forward through parts you don't want to watch and rewind to watch the things you want to see again.

You even have the freedom to control Live TV. Each time you tune to a channel, the DVR begins making a temporary recording of the program you are watching. This gives you the ability to pause the current program if the phone rings and the freedom to rewind or instant replay a scene that you just have to see again. Your DVR will record up to one hour of Live TV.

It's important to understand the Live TV recording is not permanent. Unlike recording a program on your DVR to watch later, the DVR records Live TV in a temporary storage or a buffer. For Live TV recordings, this temporary recording (buffer) will be erased if any of the following occur:

- The DVR is turned off
- You watch the same channel for longer than the temporary recording buffer period. The most recent hour of the program is kept in the temporary recording
- You switch to another program. When you change channels, your DVR begins to store the new program. It removes the previous program you were watching from the temporary storage.

This user guide will walk you through the many extraordinary features. But as always, if you have questions or problems, just give us a call.

The Remote



Use one remote to control multiple devices.

Setup

Use for programming sequences of devices controlled by the remote.

Skip Forward, Skip Back, REW, PLAY, FFWD, STOP, Pause, Record

In STB mode, these control the DVR functions. In other modes, these can control a VCR, DVD Player or DVR.

Menu Displays the menu.

Guide -----

Opens the Interactive Program Guide

Day =/-Jump ahead or back one day in the Interactive Program Guide.

Red - Access the Weather App____ Green - Access recent phone calls Yellow - Access the What's Hot, Weather and Games App

Vol +/-Raise or lower the volume.

Mute Turn the sound off or on.

FAV

View your favorite channels.

Input

In TV control mode, will change the input of the device you are controlling.



Power

Turn on/off a selected device.

Live Return to watching live TV.

List

Display a list of recorded, future and series rules on your DVR.

Info

Display the current channel and program information. Press again for more detail.

Browse, Search, Arrow and OK Navigate and select onscreen choices.

Exit Exit the current screen.

Page +/-Page up or down in lists and Interactive Program Guide.

Channel +/-Changes to the next higher or lower channel.

On Demand Access video on demand services.

Last Recall the last channel or option.

Number Keys (0-9) Directly selects a channel or enter options.

DVR Playback Controls

Your remote control offers standard capabilities, as well as enhanced remote control buttons that function similarly to DVD controls.

Here's what each button does:



W S

E

- List Select to see a list of recorded programs. Press the LIST button a second time to see what is scheduled to be recorded. Press LIST a third time to access your Series Rules.
- Live Select to return to the current part of a live broadcast.

Skip Forward Skip forward 30 seconds while watching a recording or live TV.

Skip Back Skip backward 10 seconds while watching a recording or while watching live TV.

Play Begin or resume watching a recording. Also display/remove the status bar.

Fast Forward Fast forward through parts of a recording. Press multiple times to go forward faster.

Record Record a program.

Pause Pause the program you are currently watching. While paused, the Fast-Forward button will play the program frame by frame in slow motion.

Stop Stop watching a recording or stop a recording that is in progress.

Rewind Rewind through parts of a recording. Press multiple times to rewind faster.

Guide Access the program Guide. Press a second time for alternate view.

Arrows/Browse/Search/OK Press to navigate through the guides, menu options or to make selections.

S

E

A

R

с

What's On TV?

When you first turn on the TV, it's easy to see what is currently showing. You can use the OK button, the INFO button, or the Browse (right arrow) button.

Using the OK Button (Now Playing)

- 1. Press the *OK* button on the remote control.
- 2. When you press the OK button, you see what program is playing currently.

In this example, the TV symbol indicates you are viewing Food Network Star: Guy Live from channel 33 FOOD. The tower symbol next to channel 33 indicates what is on live television. Channel 154 is currently recording as indicated by the circle symbol.



The Now Playing window will also provide the current temperature.

Using the INFO Button

- Press the *INFO* button on the remote control. When you press the *INFO* button, you see the
 name and a description of the current program at the top of the screen. If you are watching a
 live program, at the bottom of the screen you'll see the channel number, channel name, current
 date and time, program name, date and time the program airs, a progress bar showing how far
 along the program is, and the program that airs next.
- If you are viewing a live program you can press the *Right/Left arrow* buttons to view what is showing later on the current channel, or press the *Up/Down arrow* buttons to view what is showing on another channel.
- Press the Day + and Day buttons to see what is on this channel 24 hours from now.



Using the Browse Button

- Press the *Browse* (right arrow) button on the remote control. At the top of the screen, you see the channel you are currently tuned to. At the bottom of the screen, you see the channel number, channel name, current date and time, program name, date and time the program airs, a progress bar showing how far along the program is, and the program that airs next.
- Press the *Right/Left arrow* buttons to view what is showing later on the current channel. Or, press the *Up/Down arrow* buttons to view what is showing on another channel.
- Press the Day + and Day buttons to see what is on this channel, 24 hours from now.



Using the Channel Guide

The Channel Guide is your on-screen tool to see what is on television and allows you to surf channels while still watching a program.

Using the Guide Button

- Press the *GUIDE* button on the remote control. Information about the program you are tuned to displays at the top of the screen along with indicators showing:
 - · Whether a program is in HD
 - · Whether a program is a new episode
 - Whether the program is available for Pay Per View purchase

(Times)				Thu, May 30 4:25 pm
13 Food Networ Food Network Guy Live	k k Star	G be	elists create and perfo ed on a holiday or eve	rm a television special ent.
330 pm	CARTYL			
Thu May 30	4:00 pm	4:30 pm	5:00 pm	5:30 pm
	- Food Network Star		Chopped	
	Man v. Sood	Man v. Food	Bizarre Foods With A	ndrew Zimmern
	You Live in What?		You Live in What?	
	Good Luck Charlie	Good Luck Charlie	Good Luck Charlie	Jessie
	SpongeBob SquarePants	SpongeBob SquarePants	Sanjay and Craig	SpongeBob SquareParts
				Sauch = Dussien

Other channels and their programs will show at the bottom of the screen. Shows that started prior to the current time slot are indicated with a blue arrow prior to the program name. Shows that continue past the last time slot showing on the guide are indicated with a blue arrow after the program name. Programs scheduled for recording will be marked with a red circle.

2. To move through the guide one channel at a time, use the Up/Down arrow buttons on the

remote control. As you do this, a description of the highlighted program will display at the top of the screen. Or, press the *Channel* + and *Channel* - buttons to scroll through the channels more quickly.

- 3. To move through the guide one page at a time, press the *Page* + and *Page* buttons on the remote control.
- 4. To move through the guide one screen at a time, use the *Fast Forward* and *Rewind* buttons.
- To move through the guide a full 24 hours, press the Day + and Day buttons on the remote control. You cannot use the Day - button to go back to programs that have already aired, however, you can use it to page back if you have moved ahead in the guide.
- 6. To see programs you missed, press the Skip Back button to go back one page in the guide. If
- there was a program you missed, you could search for other programs of the same name and schedule the DVR to record the program.
- While in the Guide, if you press the GUIDE button a second time, similar information is displayed in a different format.
- To browse through the guide using a Favorites list, press the Blue button. The list name will appear at the bottom of the screen. Keep pushing the *Blue* button to scroll through the different Favorites lists.
- Events marked with the green "NEW" symbol signify a new episode of the program.
- 10. To exit the guide, press the *EXIT* button on the remote control.



Using the Picture in Picture (PIP) Button

Note: This is currently only available with the Amino Live set top box.

 To adjust the screen view and access two channels in different sizes, select the PIP button once to view the last viewed channel stream in the lower right corner within the current channel stream.





Video on Demand (Coming soon. Watch for details.)

The Movies/Video On Demand feature provided by the service allows you to choose from a listing of popular movies/events within the Movies Library. Once chosen, these purchased movies will be added to your Rental library and will be available for viewing for the allocated amount of time. **Available to residental customers only**.

Alfunor) 999 Avail-IVN Is TNA Unfinish Ilount For Glar	ett IV ad Business	ł¥	Action to Storm, 8 Jeff Hard	om Bound for G obby Roode, Kir V	Slory 2012 with Jamer ng Mo, Austin Arles a	s nd
			\$ \$4.9			
					TNA Unfinished Business	
	a e Local Origination					
					Smith @ Nos	

Purchase a New Video On Demand Event

 In order to purchase a new event, select the Video On Demand button on your remote control. The Library Main Screen will appear. Select the library that you would like to choose from including: Free On Demand, HD, Movies, TV Shows, New Releases, Ending Soon, or Most Popular.



- 2. Once in the desired library, select the event that you would like to purchase.
- The library description for the selected event will appear. The movie title, price, rental period, event description, rating, and event length will be shown. To preview a trailer for the event, select the Preview button. To purchase the event, select the *Rent* button.
- 4. A Purchase Information Screen will appear containing the event's title and price. The purchase screen will allow you to share the event with the rest of your whole home group before asking for your Purchase Pin. Enter your Purchase Pin and select the *Rent* button. The default PIN is 0000 until you change it.
- Your purchased event should begin playing immediately. Press the Exit button on your remote control to return to your previously viewed channel.



View Current Video On Demand Rentals

 To view your current Video On Demand rentals that are available for viewing, select the Video On Demand button. Select the Green button on your remote. The Rentals screen will appear and will show all of your current event rentals, the price of the events, whole home sharing availability for each



event, and the date each rental will expire. To watch the selected event, press the OK button on your remote control.

Search Video On Demand Rentals

- To search for a specific Video On Demand title, press the Video On Demand button. Select the Yellow button on your remote. A Search Library screen will appear. Enter a keyword or title into the search field and select the Yellow button again.
- 2. Search results for the entered title/keyword will appear.



φĞ

Search

There are search capabilities that allow you to either search for a full title of a program or for a word or two within a title. You can use the Search feature in the guide to find all instances of a program by title, or you can use the Search feature to enter a partial name and search for all instances of the word to locate the desired program. This works well if you can't recall the full name of a program or movie.

Perform a Title Search Within the Guide

- 1. Press the *Guide* button. Select the desired program using the arrow buttons, and press the *Yellow* button on the remote control.
- This will perform a full title search to return all shows with the same title. In this example, the search found all shows titled "Bonanza."

Search : Bonanza		
Bonanza Ch: 290	The Debt Thu, 05/30 - 6 00 pm	
Borianza Ch: 290	The Strange One En. 05/31 - 4/20 am	
Bonanza Ch: 14	jack Knife Fit. Q5/31 - 1.00 pm	
Bonanza Ch: 41	King of the Mountain Fri, 05/31 - 2:00 pm	
Bonanza Chi 12	The Ape Ini, 05:13 - 2:02 pm	-
Bonariza Ch: 290	Devil on Her Shoulders Fri. 05/31 - 3.00 pm	

 If there is a program in the search results you would like to record, you may schedule a recording from the list of search results. Use the *Up/Down arrow* buttons to highlight the program. Press the *Record* button to record the program. Press *OK* button to tune to the channel.

Perform a Partial Text Search Using the Search Button on Remote Control

 While viewing any program (and not in the Guide or other menus), press the Search button (left arrow) on the remote control. Select New Search. This will display a search window where you can enter the first few letters or one or two words in the program title.



2. Use the arrow buttons on the remote control to highlight the letters and press the *OK* button to select a letter. When you have entered all the text, arrow down to Search and press the *OK* button or just push the *Yellow* button to start the search.

- In this example, the user has searched for all programs with the word "dog" in the title.
- 4. If there is a program in the search results you would like to record, you may schedule a recording from the list of search results. Simply use arrow buttons to highlight the program and then press *OK* or *Record* on



the remote control. Follow the steps to schedule a recording.

 You may also continue to search for more programs by the same name. Selecting "Dog the Bounty Hunter" and pushing the Yellow button will search for all scheduled airings of "Dog the Bounty Hunter."

Record Programs

Your DVR service gives you the freedom to record the program you are watching as you are watching it, record a program while you watch another, or you can record a program you see in the program guide. You can also schedule a series recording so you always catch all episodes of your favorite programs.

Note: If a program you record is either locked by parental rating settings or on a channel that is locked, the DVR will record the program, but you will be required to enter a PIN to view it.

Record What You are Currently Watching

If you are watching a program and decide you want to record the remainder of the program, you can easily start the recording.

- 1. While watching a program, press the *Record* button on the remote control.
- Choose whether this is a one-time recording, a series recording, or select Exit to not set a recording.
- Customize your recording selections for start and stop time and which folder to save the recording to.



- The Reminder function may also be selected from this screen. Select the Reminder function if you would like your television to remind you when:
 - When the program is going to air
 - When a new episode of the program is going to air
 - Each time a program will air
 - You may set the reminder for 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 10 or 15 minutes prior to the program start.
 - You can also choose to have the television automatically tune to the channel when the recording starts.
- A Red circle will briefly display in the top right of the screen indicating you are recording the program.
- If you decide to stop recording the program before it is complete, press the *Record* button again. Choose from the options regarding how to save the partial recording. The options are:
 - Continue Recording Does not stop recording the program.
 - Stop Recording and Keep Saves the recording for future viewing.

9 ESPN portsCenter		ESPN's flagship program prov highlights and analysis.	ides sports news,
	3	Stop Recording?	Allenander /
C COlum Fri May 31		Please select an action from the following choices:	10.30 am
	Che	Continue Recording	wapped
	тор	Stop Recording and Keep	
HAT	Wite	Stop Recording, Keep and Protect	
	\$20	Stop Recording and Delete	

- Stop Recording, Keep and Protect Saves the recording and protects it from automatic deletion.
- Stop Recording and Delete Deletes the recording from memory.

Create a One-Time Recording from the Guide

Whether you are choosing a program from the Guide or you are currently viewing the program, the process to create a one-time recording is the same:

- 1. From the Guide, highlight the program you want to record and press the *Record* button on the remote control. The recording options will display.
- 2. Choose to create a one-time recording.
- Use the arrow keys to customize start & stop times, folder to save the recording to, and auto tune preferences.

- Arrow down to "Create One Time Recording" and click the OK button on your remote control.
- 5. A Red circle will display in the guide indicating the program will record.
- You will also be able to find the recording in the Recordings list.

nters 00 j.m - 6.00 j.m 4.30 pm	Che bas	efs work with tofu in rou ket.	ind one; surf & turf
00 pm - 6.00 pm 4.30 pm	500 mm		
-cooping		6-20-000	620.000
Food Network Star	Chopped	G	Chopped +
fan y. Food	Bizarre Foods With A	ndrew Zimmern	Man v. Food
You Live in What?	You Live in What?		House Hunters International
iood Luck Charile	Good Luck Charlie	Jesie	A.N.T. Farm
pongeBob quarePants	Sanjay and Craig	SpongeBob SquareParts	SpongeBob SquarePants
	lan v. Food "You Live in What? icod Luck Charile pongeBob oursePants	Em y. Food Bearre Foods With A You Live In What? You Live In What? sood Luck Charlie Good Luck Charlie pongebob Sanjay and Craig	nn y. Food Bowre Foods VAIN Andrew Jimmern ,You Live in What? Food Luck Charlie Good Luck Charlie Jessie songapility. Sanjay and Craig Samphility

 If you change your mind and decide against recording the program, with the program highlighted on the guide, press the *Record* button on the remote control. Then select an action from the listed choices.

Record a 'Live' Event

(Live sporting event, award show, etc.)*

Recording a Live Event is essentially the same as recording any other program. However, since there is a chance of a live event running longer than originally scheduled in the programming guide, you have the option to record up to one hour longer in order to be sure you record the entire event. An example would be a major league baseball game or football game.

- From the Guide, highlight the program you want to record and press the *Record* button on the remote control. The recording options will display.
- The DVR recognizes from the program guide information that this is a live broadcast and warns you that it may extend past the

APRIL Notever 1						anon, stop 1	10 2125 pri
ALET Descention		1.04					
NPL Preseason I	ootoan						
Allerta facore al	Extend Recording/	lanare -		-		June 1	
March 16	NFL Preseason Foo This program designated e	n is live and n and time. Wou	nay exte Ild you l	end past its like to extend		3	
man Ang 25	recording?					8.05	him
	Stop Record	ing	1 minu	ute later			
629 ESPNHD	Estand Personaling	1		Stee 0	. Time		1988 1
	extend weedraing			atop u	mine		
551 ESP(0.10							1000 -
	Due North Outdoors	UFC Reloaded					
	Dinurs, Drive-Ins and Dives	Diners, Drive- Dives	irs and	Diners, Drive-	ins and	Diners, Driv Dives	e-tris and
						Search 1	D. Datasta

designated end time. Use the *Left/Right arrow* keys to choose the Stop Recording option. Choose extension time options ranging from 1 minute to 60 minutes.

3. Arrow down to Extend Recording and press OK on the remote control.

*Note: Live programming options will only be available when the Guide Data flags the programming as "live" programming.

Record a Series from the Guide

Whether you are choosing a program from the Guide or you are currently viewing the program when you decide to record it, the process to create a series recording is the same:

- If you have found a program that you would like to record in the Guide, highlight it and press the *Record* button on the remote control. The recording options will display.
- 2. Arrow over to select Series.
- 3. The Series Recording Options will display.
 - Choose how many episodes to Keep at Most any given time. Options are 1 10 or All episodes. Use *Left/Right arrow* buttons to make your selection.
 - Choose the Show Type you wish to record. You may choose to record All episodes of a
 program or only New episodes.
 - Choose when to Start Recording. You can begin 'on time' when the program is scheduled to begin. Or you can use the *Left/Right arrow* buttons to choose 1, 2, 3, 4, 5,10 or 15 minutes early.
 - Choose when to Stop Recording. You can stop 'on time' when the program is scheduled to end. Or you can use the *Left/Right arrow* buttons to choose 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 10, 15, 30, 45 or 60 minutes late.
 - Choose the Folder where you want to save the recording. By default the folder will be 'All Recordings' but you may choose another existing folder or create a new folder.
 - In Record On, Select the room you would like the Series Rule to apply to. (Room must be within the Whole Home Group.)
 - Select Yes or No for the Auto Tune feature.
 - Arrow down to Create Series Recording and press *OK* on the remote control to save your changes. To cancel your changes, press the *EXIT* button or highlight Exit and press *OK* on the remote control.
- A Red circle with an 'S' will display in the guide indicating the program is part of a series recording.
- You will also be able to see the scheduled recording in the Future Recordings list as well as in the Series Rules list.

CTEMAN I				the many
34 The Travel CI	hannel	050 540	out of a nelicopters free	e fail off the top of a
Top 5		PG bas	story tower, hoat weg	chtless in space;
Radical Plunges			and as down that may and	
Fri May 31	8:30 am	9:00 am	9.30 am	10:00 am
	Big Deddy's House	Challenge		Good Exts
	Bert the Conqueror	Top 5	D Top 5	Travel Testers
	The Unsellables	The Unselfables	The Unsellables	The Unsellables
	Sofia the First	Doc McStuffins	Doc McStuffins	Phineas and Ferb
20.1.12	Team Unizoomi	Dora the Explorer	Dora the Explorer	Bubble Gupples

Δ	ı.	L	ΙΔ	Ν	С	F	С	0	м	М	U.	NI	C	Δ	т	0	N S	:
~	∟	L		1.1	C	L .	C	U	1 1 1	111	U	1 1		~		. 0	IN U	,

			Schedule Recording Incredible Dog Challenge			
dag				A 100 A 1		
	8		One-Time	Series Reminder		
			Keep at Most	3 enisodes		
			Show Type	New only		
			Start Recording	On-time		
			Stop Recording	On-time		
i di	4	space		All Recordings	ood Retain Star	
	• 5	iearch	🗰 AutoTune		food	
			Create Series Recording		Exit	

Recording Conflicts

The DVR can record a limited number of programs at a time. If you attempt to record more programs than the system is capable of recording at one time, the DVR will warn you of a recording conflict.

- You may choose to either resolve the conflict or to cancel your option to record the program.
- When you choose "Resolve Conflict," a guide screen will appear showing the other programs currently scheduled to be recorded.



3. Highlight the program you wish to stop recording and press the *Record* button on the DVR controls. Choose from the stop recording options. You may now choose the alternate program you wish to record from the guide and press the *Record* or *OK* button.

Watch a Recorded Program

- 1. To access the list of recorded programs, press the *LIST* button on the remote control.
- From the list of recordings, use the Up/Down arrow buttons to choose the folder containing the recorded program you wish to watch. When you highlight a program, it expands to show more information, or you may need to press the INFO button depending on your configuration.



- 3. To start playback of the recording, press the *Play* or *OK* button on the remote control.
- 4. If the program is one that you had previously viewed and stopped in the middle, you will be asked if you would like to resume playback from where you left off, if you would like to restart from the beginning, or if you would like to exit and return to the Recordings List.
- 5. As you play back a program, you have the ability to Fast Forward, Rewind, Pause, Replay, Jump Forward, Jump Backward or Stop the playback.

 When you reach the end of the program, you will be asked if you would like to delete the recording. Select either Yes or No.

DIGITAL CABLE TV USER GUIDE



Binge Mode Recording Playback

When you are watching programming from a Series Recording and have multiple recordings, this mode will prompt you to watch the next recording in a series once you are done with the initial one.

You can also highlight DELETE to delete the episode you just watched.

Then either RETURN TO TV, RETURN TO LIST, or choose the next recording in the list below.



Attempt to Watch a Locked Channel

If you have locked channels from view, you will need to enter a PIN in order to access programming on that channel. See the Parental Controls section for instructions on locking channels.

- In this example, the channel is locked; you are prompted to enter a PIN. Until you change it through Parental Controls in the Settings menu, the default PIN is 0000.
- The Enter PIN screen will remain until a correct PIN is entered or until you press Exit.
- Pressing Exit will bring up a screen indicating an invalid PIN was entered. Press the *GUIDE* button to browse for another program to watch. This same result happens when selecting a locked channel from the Guide.

	Watch Locked Ch	annel			
	The selected chare settings,	nel is locked by you	r parental contr	lor	
	Ratings PIN				
	Override	Until 11:3	0 am		
	ОК		Exit		
69 VH1				Fri, May	31 11:16 am
			Rated Pri	peram	
Ki	ngoom come		have a re-	- C. T.	
10.0	0 am - 12:10 pm	PĞ	12:10 pm -	t:15 pm	14
1000	0 am - 12:10 pm	ΡĞ	12:10 pm -	1:15 pm Fri, M	14 ¹
Alimas 45 The Discovery C	ngoom Come 0 am - 12:10 pm hannel	PĞ	12:10 pm - program is rate	1:15 pm Fri, M d above your	لي الم ay 31 11:18 ar parental
Alfred 45 The Discovery Cl Rated Program	ngoom Come 0 am - 12:10 pm hannel	Pă the tă com	12:10 pm - program is rate rols. Press [Info	1:15 pm Fri, M d above your [10 view this]	ې کې ay 31 11:18 ar parental program s
Alfman 10:00 45 The Discovery Cl Rated Program	ligoom Come 0 am - 12:10 pm hannel Invalid PIN	Pă This 14 cont deci	12:10 pm - program is rate rols. Press (Info Ils.	Fri, M d above your to view this	ay 31 11:18 an parental program's
Alfman 45 The Discovery Cl Rated Program	ngoom Come 0 am - 12:10 pm hannel Invalid PIN The entored PIN M	PG This 14 com state deca	12:10 pm - program is rate rols. Press (Info Is.	Fri, M d above your to view this j	ay 31 11:18 ar parental programs
Alford Afford 45 The Discovery Cl Rated Program	ngoom Come D arrs - 12:10 pm hannel Invaalid PIN The entered PIN w again.	PG this 14 cont 24 deca	12:10 pm - program is rate nois. Press (Info lia.	Fri, M Fri, M d above your to view this	ay 31 11:18 ar parental programs
Alfwar 45 The Discovery Cl Rated Program CC 1100 am Britwy 71	ngoom Come D am - 12:10 pm hannel Invalid PIXs The entiried PIXs egin.	This J¥ con J¥ deta sec invatid. Please e	12:10 pm - program is rate rols: Press (Info Ils inter your pin	Fri, M d above your to view this to new this	ay 31 11:18 ar parental program's 1:30 pm
Alfaan 45 The Discovery Cl Rated Program CC En May 211 41 Thuan	Agoom Come 0 am - 12:10 pm hannel The entoried PINs The entoried PINs egain. Gene PIN Override	Pă This 14 com 14 deca eas invalid. Please e Until 11:30	12:10 pm - program is rate program is rate program is rate arm	Fri, M Fri, M d above your to view this j	iay 31 11:18 an parental programs 1:30 pm
Alfhan 45 The Discovery Cl Rated Program CC 11 02 am PR May 31 41 TYLAND 42 AFFY	Igoon Come Dam - 12:10 pm Invalid PIN The antored PIN w again. Un PIN Override Put	Pč This 44 cont act data act data until 11:30	12:10 pm - program is rate rois: Press [Info Is; inter your pin am	Fri, M d above your to view this j 	ay 31 11:18 ar parental programs 1:30 pm
Alfaka Alfaka	hannel Invalid PIN The enside PIN equit. Unit PIN Override Exec OK	Po this the the cont cont the cont cont cont cont cont cont cont cont	12:10 pm - program is rate nois. Pross (Info Its inter your pin am Exit	Fri, M Fri, M d above vour to view this to view this anske wet Program	14 ay 31 11:18 an parental program's 1:30 pm

Attempt to Watch a Program Outside the Parental Rating Settings

If you have set parental ratings in order to prevent viewing shows beyond a rating that you find acceptable, you will need to enter a PIN in order to access programming beyond your specified rating. See the Parental Controls section for instructions on how to Set Ratings limits.

Delete a Recording

1. When the program is rated beyond the viewing limits set, you are prompted to enter a PIN. Until you change it through

default PIN is 0000.

control

Parental Controls in the Settings menu, the

an invalid PIN was entered. Press the GUIDE button to browse for another program to watch. This same result will occur when keying in a channel number on the remote

PIN is entered or until you press Exit.

In addition to the option to delete a recording when you have finished viewing it, there are other options for deleting a recording.

- 1. To access a list of recorded programs, press the LIST button on the remote control.
- 2. Use the Up/Down arrow buttons to highlight the entire folder or the individual episode you want to delete.
- 3. Press the *Red* button to Delete the recording or group of recordings. Or, press the Green button to access the Actions menu and then choose Delete. You have the option to cancel the process.

DIGITAL CABLE TV USER GUIDE







Working with Multiple Streams

You can easily tell what your DVR is doing by pressing the *OK* button. When you see the red light indicating that something is being recorded on the DVR, you can quickly find out what program is recording.

- Press the OK button on the remote control to see what is Now Playing. In this example, the television is tuned to channel 33 as indicated by the TV symbol. Channel 154 is recording as indicated by the red circle symbol.
- You may change to view any of the listed programs by using the *Up/Down* arrow keys on the remote control and pressing the *OK* button. For example, you can choose to view the program as it is being recorded on Channel 154.
- When you change to view the program that is recording, the system will start at the last





time you viewed that program. You have access to *Rewind, Skip Back, Skip Forward,* and *Fast Forward* to move within the recording.

Using the List Button to Access Recordings

You access your recordings, the list of future recordings and series rules by pressing the *LIST* button on the remote control multiple times.

Current Recordings

Press the *LIST* button one time to access the list of Recording Folders. The All Recordings folder appears first and includes all of the recordings you have stored on your DVR. If grouping is enabled in your setting, each program will also have a folder including all recordings of that program. To move in and out of the folders, use the *Left/Right arrow* buttons. At the top of the screen, you see the number of folders and the amount of space you have free on the DVR.

When you are in a program folder:

- Delete a recording by pressing the *Red* button on the remote control.
- View the available Actions by pressing the *Green* button on the remote control. The Actions list displays on the right hand side of the screen. To make it easy for you, the list of Actions on the screen shows the corresponding button that you could press on the remote control. It is also possible to highlight your selection and then press *OK* on the remote control.
- Search for programs within the Recording folders by pressing the *Yellow* button on the remote.
- Sort the Current Recordings by pressing the Blue button on the remote





control. By default, Current Recordings are displayed by date and time. If you press the *Blue* button, programs will be sorted by Name.

• Press the Skip Forward button to view recordings by title rather than group.

Future Recordings

Press the LIST button two times to view your list of Future Recordings.

These are programming events that are waiting to happen. At the top of

the screen, you see the number of recordings and the amount of space you have free on the DVR.

After you open a program folder, you can:

• Delete a future recording by pressing the *Red* button on the remote control.



- View the available Actions by pressing the *Green* button on the remote control. The Actions list displays on the right side of the screen. To make it easy for you, the list of Actions on the screen shows the corresponding button that you could press on the remote control. You can also highlight your selection and then press the *OK* button on the remote control.
- Search for programs within the Recording folders by pressing the *Yellow* button on the remote.
- Sort the Current Recordings by pressing the Blue button on the remote control. By default, Current Recordings are displayed by date and time. If you press the *Blue* button, programs will be sorted by Name.
- Press the Skip Forward button to view recordings by title rather than group.

Series Recording Rules

Press the *LIST* button three times to view your Series Recording Rules. These are the programs that you have set to record on a regular basis. You can make adjustments to your series recording rules from this screen. At the top of the screen, you see the number of Series Rules and the amount of space you have free on the DVR.

- Highlight the Series Rules you want to change and press OK. Make changes from the available options.
- 2. Delete a rule by pressing the *Red* button on the remote control.
- 3. View the available Actions by pressing the Green button on the remote control. The Actions list displays on the right side of the screen. To make it easy for you, the list of Actions on the screen shows the corresponding button that you could press on the remote control. You can also highlight your selection and then press the *OK* button on the remote control.



Actions Edit Item

Group by Title

Move To Folder



ALLIANCE COMMUNICATIONS



- 4. Search for programs in the recordings folders by pressing the Yellow button on the remote.
- Sort the Series Rules by pressing the Blue button on the remote control. By default, Series Rules are displayed by Priority. If you press the Blue button, programs will be sorted by Name.

Using the Menu Button

TV Menu

Along with being able to access almost all functions with specific buttons on the remote control, you can also access these controls through the Main Menu. Under TV you have options for

Guide – Corner, Guide - Full, Now Playing, Search, and What's Hot.

Channel Guide

Press the Menu button on the remote.

If you arrow to the right, highlight Guide – Corner and press the *OK* button, you can view the channel guide. This is the same as when you would press the *GUIDE* button on the remote control one time.

Now Playing

Press the Menu button on the remote.

If you arrow to the right, highlight Now Playing and press the *OK* button, you can view what is currently playing as well as any programs being recorded. This is the same as when you would press the *OK* button on the remote control.







Search

Press the Menu button on the remote.

If you arrow to the right, highlight Search and press the *OK* button, you can search for a program. This is the same as when you would press the Search button on the remote control.



What's Hot

Press the Menu button on the remote.

If you arrow to the right, highlight What's Hot and press the *OK* button, you can view the What's Hot menu.

Recordings Menu



Nearly everything that you do with the *LIST* button on the remote control you can do in the Main Menu. Under Recordings you have options for Current, Future, and Series.

Current Recordings

Press the *Menu* button on the remote and select Recordings.

If you arrow to the right, highlight Current and press the *OK* button, you can view the list of recorded programs saved on your DVR. This is the same as if you would press the *LIST* button on the remote control.

Future Recordings

Press the *Menu* button on the remote and select Recordings.

If you arrow to the right, highlight Future and press the *OK* button, you can view the list of



programs that you have scheduled to be recorded. This is the same as if you would press the *LIST* button two times on the remote control.

Series Recordings

Press the *Menu* button on the remote and select Recordings.

If you arrow to the right, highlight Series and press the *OK* button, you can view the list of series rules. This is the same as if you would press the *LIST* button three times on the remote control.

DIGITAL CABLE TV USER GUIDE



Phone Menu

If you are also subscribed to Caller ID, you can have your caller ID display on the TV as well as on your regular Caller ID device. The Recent Calls List will store recent caller ID information. Under the Phone Menu, you have options for Messages, Recent Calls and Voice Mail.

Messages

- To view messages from Alliance, press the Menu button on the remote and select Phone. Select the Messages option and press the OK button on your remote control.
- 2. To view a message, use the arrow buttons to navigate to the desired message and press the *OK* button. Press the *OK* button again when you want to close the message window.



- To delete a message, highlight it and press the *Red* button. Any deleted messages can be restored by selecting the *Red* button again until the Messages window is closed. Once the Messages window is exited, deleted messages will be permanently removed.
- When you have an unread message, an envelope icon will appear in the guide. Here is an example of an on-screen System Message on the TV:







Recent Calls

- You can access the Recent Calls list by pressing the *Green* button on the remote control. Or press the menu button, arrow down to phone, arrow over to recent calls and press *OK*.
- 2. To delete an entry on the Recent Calls list, highlight it and press the *Red* button on the remote control.



Apps Menu

The Apps menu allows you to access to the Games, Weather and What's Hot apps.





 Press the *Menu* button, arrow down to Apps, arrow over to Games. A listing of games will appear.

> Note: All games are not supported through each set top box version.

2. Select the game you want to play and press *OK*. The game selected will appear.

Weather

The Weather Application allows the current weather statistics to be viewed through multiples guides and menus.

- Press the *Menu* button, arrow down to Apps, arrow over to Weather and press OK.
- A window will appear on the screen with the most current weather data for the selected area. To receive weather information from a different location, select a new location within Settings.
- To access the Forecast portion of the Weather application, select the *Green* button within the application.







- 4. To access the Radar portion of the Weather application, select the *Yellow* button within the application window.
- Once in the Radar screen of the Weather application, select the *Blue* button to animate the radar and show a looping of current weather conditions.



What's Hot Application

The What's Hot application allows you to view real time information about what others in your local area are watching. You can easily tune to one of the "What's Hot" programs or set a recording.

- Press the *Menu* button, arrow down to Apps, arrow over to What's Hot, and press *OK*.
- A window will appear on the screen with the most current popular channel information for the local area. The popular channel information may be viewed in multiple



categories by pressing the *Right or Left Arrow* buttons. Additional popular channel information may be viewed by pressing the *Up or Down Arrow* buttons.

Settings Menu

You have the ability to control certain aspects of how your service works according to your preferences.

Under Settings you have options for Apps, Display, Edit Favorites, Guide, Parental, Phone and Recording.



Display Settings

Press the *Menu* button and arrow down to Settings. If you arrow to the right, highlight Display, and press the OK button, you can change how the set top box should display specific things. Typically these items are set at the time of installation and not changed.

- 1. Turn Closed Captioning On or Off.
- 2. Set the Audio Language to English, Spanish or French.
- Set Audio Format to Stereo, Dolby Digital or Dolby Digital +.
- Change your Connector settings to Coaxial, Composite, S-Video, Component or HDMI.
- 5. Set the TV Type to either 16:9 or 4:3.
- 6. Select the Output Resolution for the television.
- 7. View the setting for Conversion Mode, Original Size or Fit to Screen (this may also be changed temporarily by pressing the * button on the remote control).

If you feel you have changed something by accident, select Exit and press the *OK* button or just press the *EXIT* button on the remote to retain the original settings.



Guide Settings

Press the *Menu* button and arrow down to settings. If you arrow to the right, highlight Guide and press the *OK* button, you can change how Guide information displays.

General Settings

- Choose the Default Guide setting that you prefer when you press the *GUIDE* button one time. Options are Corner Screen and Full Screen.
- 2. Determine what you want to do After Changing the Channel. Should guide stay open or should it close upon changing the channel?

And in case of the local division of the loc	Summittee of the	1
Full Carston	No.	A CONTRACTOR
Full Screen	and the second second	
Keep Guide Open	- 18 M	0.00
No	Contraction of the second	
	and the second	
5 Rows	Carlon .	
4 Columns	<0140	
Never	20	
Channel by Channel	- Sert.	PRIMERI
	100	Tund Network
		Star
Never		NJUAYS
	2.1	food
Defaults Felt	and the second	
	Full Screen Keep Guide Open No 5 Rows 4 Columns Never Channel by Channel Never	Full Screen Reep Guide Open No 5 Rows 4 Columns Never Channel by Channel Never

3. Set Channel Filter to Yes or No. When set to Yes, your favorite selection will be remembered (the favorites list that you selected).

Guide Settings

- 1. Determine the Number of Rows to display in the Time Guide. Options are 3, 4, 5, 6, 7 or 8.
- 2. Determine the Number of Columns to show in the Time Guide. Options are 3, 4, 5 or 6.
- 3. Determine how long to wait for Inactivity Timeout before the guide disappears. Options range from 1 second to 2 minutes, to never.
- 4. Specify the Scrolling Behavior to be either channel by channel or page by page as you move through the guide.

Browser Settings

- 1. Specify how long to wait for Inactivity Timeout before the Browser Bar disappears.
- If you feel you have changed something by accident, you can always choose to set all items back to the original default settings.

Parental Controls

You have Parental Control options to Change PIN, Edit Locked Channels, Set Ratings, Time Restrictions, Cancel Override, and Options.

Change PIN

- Press the Menu button and arrow down to Settings. Arrow to the right, highlight Parental. Select the Change PIN category (for the Ratings PIN or Purchase PIN), and press the OK button.
- Enter the Old PIN, arrow down and enter your New PIN, and then arrow down to confirm the New PIN. Select OK to save your new PIN. Until you change it, the default PIN is 0000.
- Once the PIN has been successfully changed, a prompt will appear. Press the OK button.



Edit Locked Channels

 The Edit Locked category allows you to lock specific channels. This will require you to enter a PIN in order to view programming on that channel. Press the *Menu* button and arrow down to Settings. Arrow to the right, highlight Parental. Select the Edit Locked category and press *OK*. Enter your PIN. The default PIN is 0000 until you change it.



 A list of channels will display. Use the Up/Down arrow buttons to move through the list of channels. When you arrive at one that you want to lock, press the OK button and the channel will be added to the locked list.



 When you are finished making your selections, press the *Blue* button on the remote to lock the selected channels. Press the *Red* button on the remote to discard the changes and return to normal viewing.

Set Ratings

- The Set Ratings category allows you to set access to programming based on TV and Movie ratings. This will require that a PIN be entered in order to view programming at or beyond the rating you specify. Press the *Menu* button and arrow down to Settings. Arrow to the right, highlight Parental. Select the Set Ratings and press OK. Enter your PIN. The default PIN is 0000 until you change it.
- Use the *Left/Right arrow* buttons to choose a TV Rating. Options are: TV-Y, TV-Y7, TV-Y7 FV, TV-G, TV-PG, TV-14, TV-MA, off.
- Use the *Left/Right arrow* buttons to choose a Movie Rating. Options are: G, PG, PG-13, R, NC-17, Adults Only, off.





ALLIANCE COMMUNICATIONS

Time Restrictions

 The Time Restrictions category allows you to set time periods per day where television access requires a PIN. Press the *Menu* button and arrow down to Settings. Arrow to the right, highlight Parental. Select the Time Restrictions and press the *OK* button. Enter your PIN. The default PIN is 0000 until you change it. These time restrictions may



be set by selecting the *Green* button to Add Restriction. A new restriction will appear to the right of the week schedule. Arrow to the right to select a day and press the *OK* button.

 Once a day has been selected, use the Up/Down arrows to select a time and either AM or PM for both start and end time for the time restriction. When you are done creating time restrictions, select the EXIT button.



Cancel Override

 The Cancel Override category allows any previous PIN overrides for an extended period of time to be cancelled. Press the *Menu* button and arrow down to Settings. Arrow to the right, highlight Parental. Select Cancel Override and press the *OK* button. To cancel an existing override, select OK within the Cancel Override



prompt. Once the override has been cancelled, the parental PIN will need to be used for all Locked and Rated channels. The default PIN is 0000 until you change it.

Options

- You may choose whether Locked Channels and/or Restricted Titles are visible in the guide. Press the *Menu* button and arrow down to Settings. Arrow to the right, highlight Parental. Select the Options category and press the *OK* button. The Options category requires the Ratings PIN to be entered in order to update any settings. The default PIN is 0000 until you change it. Enter your PIN and select OK and press the *OK* button.
- Selecting a "No" value for either setting will cause these programs to not appear in the Guide. Select OK within the prompt and press the *OK* button.



3. A Parental Controls Options prompt will appear once the changes have been saved successfully.

Phone Settings

- Press the *Menu* button. Arrow down to Settings. Arrow to the right and choose Phone to adjust the Caller ID and Voice Mail Settings and press *OK*.
- From the Phone Options menu, you can turn both Caller ID and Voice Mail pop-ups on or off. You may also adjust the length of time the pop-up remains on the screen from 6, 9, 12, 18, or 21 seconds or no pop-up. This menu also allows the subscriber to adjust the selected voicemail account and whether or not a PIN is required to access any existing voicemails within that account.



3. To save your changes, arrow down to Save and press the *OK* button.

Recording Settings

 Press the *Menu* button and arrow down to Settings. Arrow to the right and choose Recording to make changes to your settings for recorded programs. Press OK.

Group Titles

Group all recorded episodes with the same title rather than listing each episode



individually. The Skip Forward button will toggle between Grouped and Ungrouped listings.

Auto Expand Selection

Choose this option to automatically display information for the selected recording.

Show Folders

When the Show Folders field is set to "Yes", all recordings and future recordings will be grouped into folders when you view your Recordings Lists. With Show Folders set to No, all recordings and future recordings will be displayed individually. Keep in mind that if Group Titles is set to Yes, programs will be grouped together even if Show Folders is set to No. When viewing your Recording Lists, the *Skip Forward* button will toggle between folders and individual recordings.

Inactivity Timeout

This setting adjusts the length of time the Status Bar remains on the screen while you are watching a recorded program after a period of inactivity. Choose from 1-10, 12, 15, 30, 45 seconds, one or two minutes, or Never.

Skip Display

Choose between displaying the playback bar or the fast forward/replay icons during recorded show playback.

Auto Reverse

Select if you would like the play back to include an Auto Reverse feature Always or Never.

Skip Ahead

Skip ahead while watching a recording or while watching live TV. This can be set from 1-999 seconds.

Skip Back

Skip back while watching a recording or while watching live TV. This can be set from 1-999 seconds.

Controlling your DVRs away from home ManageMyTVs App

Alliance Digital Cable TV customers can use the ManageMyTVs app to control their TV service from anywhere.

Instructions

Step 1: (Left) Download the FREE ManageMyTVs app from the App Store or Google Play store.



Google play



Step 2: (Right) Call Alliance for your sign-in information. Dial 611 from any phone with Alliance service or call (605) 582-6311 from your cell phone.



App Features



Access the programming guide to see what's on. If you see something you like, you can schedule your DVR to record it.





Looking for a particular program? Enter a phrase or keyword, and set recordings from the results. •••oo Verizon 😤 3:33 PM 73% Channel Recordings Edit Recorded Future Series 503 Ice Age: Continental Drift Wed 6/25/14 | 7:44 PM - 9:20 PM 503 - HBOF Kitchen - All Recordings 521 Coach Carter 52 Mon 4/07/14 | 2:29 PM - 5:03 PM 521 - SHOW Kitchen - All Recordings 531 The Incredibles Wed 2/26/14 | 2:34 PM - 4:40 PM 531 - STARZ 60 181

Find out what you've already recorded and what you've scheduled to record.

(Left) Check out what other Alliance Cable TV customers are watching. The What's Hot feature pulls a list of the most popular shows.

(Right) Turn your smartphone or tablet into a remote control. Nearly everything you do on your remote you can do on your device. Unlike your remote, you don't need to be near your TV to change channels, turn off the TV, etc., when using the app's remote feature.



DVR Web Portal

Set your DVR recordings even when you aren't home using Alliance's DVR Web Portal.



The Web Portal is accessible at www.alliancecom.net in the Quick Launch section.



You will need to contact our office for your login information. Dial 611 from any phone with Alliance service or call (605) 582-6311 from your cell phone.

ALLIANCE COMMUNICATIONS

III Sales, Mark. ervice News 0	ampus Pan	e ortal Login Telecompeti e lano	Iscape Download St. Thinkstock I	My Calorie Counter Innovative 5. Int	Division
					2
					ALLIAN
Calls My TV My S	etings				Welcome
ect a Set Top Box Fami	y-Roam	•			
Search					
O Recordings					
🚭 Guide					
np To	EN Too	w Ition BM	D. Channel (3. Marrie Trimini Channel		
£	151 1000	1:00 PM	1 1:30 PM	2:00 PM	1 2:30 PM
Alliance Tutorial Channel		Alliance Tutorial Channel		Alliance Tutorial Channel	
KELO		The Talk		Katie	
ктти		The People's Court		Maury	
KDLT		Family Feud	Family Feud	Rachael Ray	
KSFYDT2 (KSFY-DT2)	-	// The Steve Wilkos S	Star of Hit Reality Sho	The King of Queens	The King of Queens
ксэр		Cyberchase	The Cat in the Hat Kno	Curious George	Curious George
KAUNLP (KAUN-LP)		// We Dive at Dawn		The Campbells	The Adventures of Ozzi
KSFY		General Hospital		Who Wants to Be a Mill	Who Wants to Be a Mill
		1-00 PM	1:30 PM	2:00 PM	2:30 PM
8		1.001.34			

Scheduling recordings through the Web Portal is simple because it works nearly the same as on your television.

Troubleshooting Tips

I need help learning how to use my new cable TV service. What tools are available?

- Digital Cable Channel 1: Watch video tutorials that will walk you through the available features.
- Online video tutorials: Go to www.alliancecom.net/support/digital-cable-support
- This Digital Cable TV User Guide: Many answers to frequent questions are answered in this booklet.

If you're still having trouble, don't hesitate to call us by dialing 611 from any phone with Alliance service, or call (605) 582-6311 from your cell phone.

My television is on, but I'm not receiving any programming. What's the problem?

TV is on the wrong input

Make sure your television is turned to the correct input, which will be HDMI 1, Component or Channel 3 or 4, depending on the type of television you have. Newer televisions usually use HDMI or Component inputs. Older televisions may use Channel 3 or 4.

To change inputs:

On your remote, press the TV button located on the top left, and then press the input button located on the bottom left. Keep pressing the input button until the picture appears. Then press the STB button on the top right.

TV out-of-synch with DVR or Set-Top Box

Your remote control can be programmed to power off the television and set-top box at the same time. However, if they become out of synch and the TV is on but the set top is turned off, you will see this message on your TV screen. Simply press the OK button on your remote to turn the set top back on.



My picture is frozen. What should I do?

Unplug your DVR or set-top box for about two minutes and then plug it back in.

Also, if you have another television that is not connected to a DVR or set-top box, you can check if that particular channel is experiencing problems on that television, too. If the problem is occurring on both televisions, either the programmers or Alliance Communications is experiencing trouble.

I'm getting a message that says one of my channels is "unavailable." What should I do?

Unplug your DVR or set-top box for about two minutes and then plug it back in.

Also, if you have another television that is not connected to a DVR or set-top box, you can check if that particular channel is experiencing problems on that television, too. If the problem is occurring on both televisions, either the programmers or Alliance Communications is experiencing trouble.

I'm stuck in the program guide. How do I get out?

Hit the exit button located in the middle of your remote.

How do I change the number of rows and columns in the guide?

By default, the guide will display four rows and four columns of programming information. Depending upon the size of TV you are viewing and your preferences, you may want to show more or fewer columns and rows.

The settings are changed by pressing the *Menu* button. Arrow down to Settings, arrow over to Guide and press *OK*. Arrow down to Change the Number of Rows and the Number of Columns.

33 Food Networ Food Network Guy Live	k K Star	G par	alists create and perfo red on a holiday or ev	irm a television special ent.
3.30 pm	CARLIN			
Thu May 30	4:00 pm	430 pm	5.00 pm	5:30 pm
	a Food Network Star		Chopped	
	Man v. Food	Man v. Food	Dizarre Foods With A	Andrew Zimmern
			You Live in What?	
	Good Luck Charlie	Good Luck Charlie	Good Luck Charlie	Jessie
	SporgeBob	SpongaBob	Sanjay and Graig	SpongeBob

Here is a view of the default guide which has four rows and four columns.

33 Food Network Good Eats Tune, Surprisel		An aplimated kor him to raise the t	i joins Alton Brown, challenging iar on canned tuna.
Fri May 31	10:00 am	10:30 am	11:00 am
33 FOOD	Good Eats	Unwrapped	Food Network
34 TRAV	Travel Testers		Sand Wars
35 HCTV	The Unsellables	The Unsellables	House Hunters

Here is a view of the guide with three rows and three columns.

How do I access Caller ID and Voice Mail messages on my TV?

If you are subscribed to Caller ID, it is possible to have your Caller ID information display on the TV as it displays on your regular Caller ID device. Also, it is possible to have voice mail waiting indication show on your TV.



Here is an example of Caller ID display on the TV:

Press the *Green* button on your remote at any time to see your Caller ID Recent Calls list. This handy feature allows you to review a list of phone numbers that have called your wireline phone service. To delete numbers from your recent calls list use the arrow button to highlight the number you want to delete and press the *Red* button on your remote.



What should I do if I'm still having problems after following the above suggestions?

Simply dial 611 from any phone with Alliance telephone service, or call (605) 582-6311 from your cell phone.

NOTES

ALLIANCE COMMUNICATIONS

NOTES

ALLIANCE COMMUNICATIONS



wired differently

Dial 611 from any phone with Alliance service or call (605) 582-6311 from your cell phone.

www.alliancecom.net